FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY

Stephen C. Lieberman, Executive Officer
Tricia Meyers, Clerk to the Board
David P. Hale, General Counsel

Keith Storton, Chair
Jeff Lee, Vice Chair
Karen White, Board Member

AGENDA

BOARD MEETING
FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2021-10:00 A.M.

In the interest of the Governor's Executive Order N-25-20, members of the Board or staff
will participate in this meeting via teleconference. Members of the public may listen to the
meeting and provide public comment via telephone by calling 1(833)611-0393. Members
of the public may also participate in the meeting electronically by submitting public
comments to the Clerk to the Board at tmeyers@fivecitiesfire.org no later than the meeting
start time of 10:00 A.M. Emailed comments will be received directly by the Clerk and will
be read out loud during the meeting. Public comment is subject to the customary 3-minute

time limit.

CALL TO ORDER

FLAG SALUTE

ROLL CALL

AGENDA REVIEW:

At this time the Board will review the order of business to be conducted and receive requests for,

or make announcements regarding any change(s) in the order of the day. The Board should, by
motion, approve the agenda as presented or as revised.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consideration of Approval of Minutes (MEYERS)

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes of the Board Meeting of January 15, 2021.

COMMUNITY COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS:

This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present issues,
thoughts, or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda. Comments should be limited
to those matters that are within the jurisdiction of the Board. The Brown Act restricts the Board




BOARD MEETING AGENDA - FEBRUARY 19, 2021
PAGE 2

from taking formal action on matters not published on the agenda. In response to your comments,
the Chair or Vice Chair may:

o Direct Authority staff to assist or coordinate with you.
e A Board Member may state a desire to meet with you.
¢ Itmay be the desire of the Board to place your issue or matter on a future Board agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA:

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group. The
recommendations for each item are noted. Any member of the public who wishes to comment on
any Consent Agenda item may do so at this time. Any Board Member, the Fire Chief or General
Counsel may request that any item be pulled from the Consent Agenda to permit discussion or
change the recommended course of action. The Board may approve the remainder of the

Consent Agenda on one motion.

1. Consideration of Cash Disbursement Activity(LIEBERMAN)

Recommended Action: Receive and file the listing of cash disbursements for the
period of January 1, 2021 through January 31, 2021.

CONTINUED BUSINESS:

None.
NEW BUSINESS:

a. Consideration of Authorization to Execute Agreements for Reimbursement of
Costs Associated with COVID-19 Vaccination Efforts(LIEBERMAN)
Recommended Action: Authorize the Fire Chief to execute the agreement and any
ancillary agreements to enable reimbursement of the FCFA’s costs associated with the

COVID-19 vaccine efforts required by FEMA or OES.

b. Consideration of a Purchasing Policy for the Five Cities Fire Authority

(LIEBERMAN/HALE)
Recommended Action: Approve the Purchasing Policy for the use of the Authority to

acquire equipment, goods and services.

BOARD MEMBER ITEMS:

The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by a Board Member who would like to receive
feedback, obtain consensus to direct staff to prepare information, and/or request a formal agenda
report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal action can be taken.

None.

FIRE CHIEF ITEMS:
The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by the Fire Chief in order to receive comments,

feedback and/or request direction from the Board. No formal action can be taken.



BOARD MEETING AGENDA - FEBRUARY 19, 2021
PAGE 3

a. Fire Chief Updates

GENERAL COUNSEL ITEMS:
The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by the General Counsel in order to receive
comments, feedback and/or request direction from the Board. No formal action can be taken.

None.

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS:
Correspondence/Comments as presented by the Board.

CLOSED SESSION:

None.

ADJOURNMENT

e dodedeJe e de e de e be e de de Je e de de e Je o Fede e dede e de de dede ke

All staff reports or other written documentation, including any supplemental material distributed to
a majority of the Board within 72 hours of a regular meeting, relating to each item of business on
the agenda are available for public inspection during regular business hours in the Clerk to the
Board’s office, 140 Traffic Way, Arroyo Grande. If requested, the agenda shall be made available
in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans with
Disabilities Act. To make a request for disability-related modification or accommodation, contact
the Clerk to the Board's office at 805-473-5490 as soon as possible and at least 48 hours prior to
the meeting date.

Any documentation or materials to be submitted by the General Public for consideration by the
Board shall be submitted to the Clerk to the Board by email at tmeyers@fivecitiesfire.org, no later
than 24 hours prior to the above scheduled time for the Five Cities Fire Authority Board meeting.
Failure to submit documents or any materials at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled time for the
Board meeting shall be grounds for the Board to reject consideration or review of those items
unless otherwise required by state or local laws.

This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agendas
are posted at the Arroyo Grande City Hall, 300 E. Branch Street, Arroyo Grande, Headquarters ~
Station 1, 140 Traffic Way, Arroyo Grande, the Grover Beach City Hall, 154 S. 8" Street, Grover
Beach, Station 2, 701 Rockaway Avenue, Grover Beach, and Oceano Community Services
District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano.

kkkhkkkkkikkhkkkhikhihhhkkkkikikkkkkk

Agenda reports can be accessed and downloaded from the Five Cities Fire Authority Website at
www . fivecitiesfireauthority.org.




MINUTES

FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING
FRIDAY, JANUARY 15, 2021

Due to the County of San Luis Obispo’s Executive Order to shelter at home and Pursuant to
the Governor’s Executive Order N-25-20, members of the Board and staff participated in this
meeting via teleconference. Members of the public were invited to participate in the meeting
by listening in and could comment electronically by submitting public comments to the Clerk

to the Board at imeyers@fivecitiesfire.org.

CALL TO ORDER:
Board Member White called the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) Board meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

FLAG SALUTE:
Chair Storton led the Flag Salute.

ROLL CALL:
FCFA Board: Board Member Karen White, Board Member Keith Storton and Board Member Jeff Lee.
FCFA Staff Present: Fire Chief Stephen Lieberman, General Counsel Dave Hale and Clerk to the Board

Tricia Meyers.

ROTATION OF OFFICERS
The yearly rotation of officers took place. Keith Storton is the Board Chair, Board Member Jeff Lee moved to

Vice Chair, and Karen White is in the position of Board Member.

AGENDA REVIEW:
Action: Vice Chair Lee moved, Board Member White seconded, and the motion passed unanimously to approve

the Five Cities Fire Authority’'s Agenda by a voice vote.

AYES: Lee, White, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Consideration of Approval of Minutes
Action: Approved the minutes of the Board Meeting on December 18, 2020 with a voice vote.

AYES: White, Lee, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

COMMUNITY COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS:

None.



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 2
Friday, January 15, 2021

CONSENT AGENDA:

1. Consideration of Cash Disbursement Activity.
Action: Received and filed the listing of cash disbursements for the period of December 1, 2020 through

December 31, 2020.

AYES: Lee, White, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

None.

CONTINUED BUSINESS:

None.

NEW BUSINESS:

a. Consideration of a Resolution Declaring a 2015 Ford Explorer as Surplus. Chief Lieberman
presented the staff report to the Board requesting approval of a resolution to declare a 2015 Ford
Explorer command vehicle as surplus. This vehicle was purchased using grant funding from Fireman’s
Insurance Fund. Chief Lieberman explained that the limited size of this vehicle is becoming a challenge.
Itis not four-wheel drive and it can't accommodate the increasing amount of equipment required in the
vehicle. If approved to be sold, the proceeds will be used to purchase a more suitable command vehicle
next fiscal year. No public comment received.

Action: Vice Chair Lee moved, and Board Member White seconded the motion to adopt a resolution declaring
a Ford Explorer command vehicle as surplus property and delegate the Fire Chief to have the authority to
facilitate the sale of the vehicle.

AYES: Lee, White, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

BOARD MEMBER ITEMS:

None.

GENERAL COUNSEL ITEMS:

None.



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 3
Friday, January 15, 2021

FIRE CHIEF ITEMS:

a. Chief Lieberman shared that the incident management team for SLO County has be activated to focus
on points of distribution sites for the COVID-19 vaccine. The team has concluded that they are prepared
to vaccinate 15,000 people per week in the county. However, this number will depend on the availability
of the vaccine itself. There are three vaccination sites at this time. Chief Lieberman is tracking the costs
of Five Cities Fire Authority staff that works at the distribution sites for reimbursement. Board members
thanked the Chief for his work on the incident management team.

b. Staff will begin preparing for Fiscal Year 21/22 budget. Chief Lieberman explained that budget item
requests will need to be prioritized within the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement. Replacing gas
monitors is one of the needs next fiscal year.

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS:

All Board members reported that they will continue to be the representative on the Five Cities Fire Authority
Board this year for their jurisdiction. Board Member White stated that Oceano Community Services District is
working on approving a resolution to restrict fireworks use in Oceano to July 4t only.

CLOSED SESSION:
The Board adjourned to a Closed Session at 10:28 a.m. concerning the following items:

a. Public Employee Performance Evaluation, Gov. Code Section 54957
Position: Fire Chief/Executive Officer

b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation, Gov. Code Section 54957
Position: General Counsel

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION:

Chair Storton called the meeting back to order at 11:02 a.m. General Counsel Hale reported that there was a
performance evaluation of the Fire Chief and General Counsel. The Board unanimously voted to approve a
3% raise for the Fire Chief, moving his base salary from $155,652 to $160,322. General Counsel Hale also
reported that the Board unanimously approved an hourly increase for the General Counsel to a rate of
$185.00/hour for transactional work and $200/hour for litigation.

ADJOURNMENT:
Chair Storton adjourned the meeting at 11:02 a.m. The next Board meeting is scheduled for February 19, 2021,
at 10:00 a.m. via teleconference.



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 4
Friday, January 15, 2021

KEITH STORTON, CHAIR

ATTEST:

TRICIA MEYERS, CLERK TO THE BOARD



T 7 STAFF REPORT

=5
W
‘;}’ém:*mi_ama”

TO: Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: February 19, 2021

FROM: Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief
Margaret Conway-Pearson, City of Arroyo Grande Interim Accounting Manager

SUBJECT: Consideration of Cash Disbursement Ratification

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) Board of Directors review, receive and accept the
attached listing of cash disbursements for the period January 1 through January 31, 2021.

BACKGROUND

The FCFA JPA agreement identifies the City of Arroyo Grande as the agency providing financial services to the fire
department. The City processes payroll and accounts payable on behalf of the FCFA. Historically, the City has
processed FCFA payroll on City checks (using a City bank account). The City recovers 100% of these payroll costs
along with related staff time. FCFA staff is working with the City to determine if payroll can be processed utilizing
FCFA checks/bank account.

Cash disbursements are made weekly based on the submission of all required documentation and supporting
invoices for costs incurred/services rendered. The Fire Chief reviews all disbursement documents before they are

submitted to the City for processing.
FISCAL IMPACT
There is a $631,369.03 fiscal impact that includes the following items:

e Accounts Payable Checks $ 88,881.57
e Payroll and Benefit Checks $542,487.46

ALTERNATIVES

The following alternatives are provided for the Board’s consideration:
1. Approve the staff recommendation
2. Do not approve the staff recommendation
3. Provide other direction.

ATTACHMENTS

January 1 through January 31, 2021 Accounts Payable Register
January 1 through January 31, 2021 Payroll and Check Register

PREPARED BY
Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief



L INJWHOVLLY

VOIMINY 40 YNVE,
'VOIHIY 40 YNvE:
VOIINY 40 YNvE
_VOIMINY 40 dNve:
_VOIHINY 40 YNvE;
VOIHINY J0 NV

_ VOI4INY 40 INVE
VOININY 40 YNVE:!

__VOINIINY 40 dINVE!
_VOIHIWY 40 dNvE
VOIHINY 40 YNVE
VOIHANY 40 YNVE;
_ VORIV 4O MNVE!
VOIYINY 40 YNV,
__VOIHINY J40 MNve!
VOIHIINY 40 YNVE '
VOIH3NY 40 YNveE:
VOIYINY 40 %Nv!
'VOIMIWY 40 YNve!
VOIHIWY 40 JNvE
_VORIWY 40 MNva’
VOIMIWY J0 JINVE'
VOIMIWY 40 dNvVE;
VOIYINY 40 YNvE!

VOIHINY 40 ANvE

VOIIIWY H0 YNvVE|
_VOIIAY H0 YNvE:

VOIHIWY 40 YNvE'
VOIMIWY 40 YNvE|

VOIHINY 40 YNvE!
181v
_1Blv.

181V,

‘JANYHO OAOHYY 40 ALID
_IANVHD OAOHHY 40 ALID!
_3ANVHD OAOHHY 40 ALID!
115 ONV BY14 NVOIHIWY!

ONI “LNJWdIND3 FHId HYISTIV
ONI "INJWINOT T4 HVISTIV]

SWEN 1Se7 IopuaA|

9128 |2y 06T
9LEG LIV 06T
9/25'L12Y"062!
£0L9’L 12V 062;
__BOSS'LIZY 06T

8095'L1Z¥'062!
8095L121'062

L09G'LLZY 062
1096°LLZV'06Z]

1099'L L2 062!

" 109g'LLZv 062

109"} L2y 062

109g'LLZY 062
L09S'LLZ1"062 |
__B0SS'LIZY 062,

80S5°LLZH 062,

E0VS LIZY 062,

£ovs'Liey omN.

€L26°L12Y 06T,

S625°LLZY 062!

_SG26°LI2Y 062

§52S° L2 062!

§526°LLZv 062
e DGW DO

9025°L 1Z062!
1025 L1Zb 062,

Lozg'tLzvoee,

1025'LLZV 062
L0ZS'L 12062
L025'LLZY 062,

_E0VS'LLZY 062!

£0vS'Li Y 062!

_ E0vS'Liey 062
___lovs'Liev'oee,
__Loys'Lizro6e
_lovs'Lizroez:
8055412y 06¢

eLesLLzy06e]

L ZLTSLLZY'06Z,

#1100V

>w_m=w_._ - $)008 _oozEmEm OdA; vo G9
.. . E..E.:: >ccm=_._ uozewe:gQ' ¢mm
Qsm:._wu_ .E.,_EE: aosm bw::u GL'661
wmm._o“m wcoca_ ,Fw_:o w.__.*‘ 66°0

_ozu.,om ov

. Puslgy
0>=OEBSN _._Omtmummc._ mm m.vm —.

z._._n_mr_o mm 62

ammg m>_ﬁmwho U:m._n NO WN

£ AIn uozewe 0| 'zgl )

~LIQ3HD’ m_. 98-

mtwn AIn uozewse: 61'98
n_:n Em__ :m_m_ts uozeuwe wN 8LL
uoa uopeuiooeA u_>8 mw.co £

coamc_uom> u_>oo oo: 09€}.90°ZL

WooZ,667L

mucemucoo aInoasgo°cl
Eoo hmuczoum_u |00} G6'S
.__.EE_E\_mcoﬂma o_mac<.:onEm '95°08
uy pabewep paseidas - by opeiq 1581l
PIHWIIUN SIBUIEIUGO 8/ °0LL

...._._n_m_mo 6€" m.v_.u

m:_&_cm alois sdn’ |0t'v6e
m._ﬁmEoE._mE mnm_ E_mw:_ 15"88|

mm__n_azm 80l .to LEBL

mm__anzm quo €6 FN

mm__n_n__._m 3%4j0196°0L |
uozewe | ‘e8|

:.EB :oumEm 199'LET
_0g/vefel - oeiseil mmc__ w:o:n Z8'0SL

€ us - mmco unal >_E:oE [Z6°ELL
N ws - mmr_o a_:o.__u >_£=oE TBELL
;anm L) 1518 €86

Lz/0L) §m>> aesL OvL) 19EM z9' 862

m_.:.w\o_.v EEEE wET.mEB €L'9

1202 “LE - L AHVNNVT

ONILSITMI3HO

ALIIOHLNY 3HI4 STILID AL

sOey 6EvhL
.sns mEoo E.zﬁ.-ﬁ:wh_w 3dd /€0’ LEL'EE
_N1se1407 40} S100Q /' LLE

uonduaseq.

E:o:i {

L

g
19L¥L
SLYL
SLYL

#9940

_L20Z/LLILO,;

1202711110, 6€]
120Z/LL/L0;  8e!

_1202Z/LLL0; L€

L20Z/LLIL0;  9E

1202110 st
_L202LLILO. VE.
_LZ0ZILL/LO; €€

1202/LL/L0L 2
L20Z/LL/LO; LE
L20Z/LL/L0!  OE.
L202/LL/LO; 62

1Z0Z/LLN0; 82

LZ0Z/LLILO: L2
LZ0Z/LL/L0. 92!
Lz0z/LLLo. Sz

120Z/LLL0. b2
_leoziLliLo; €zl

g0z 2e,
LZ0Z/LLILO;  LZ;

120z/LL/o. oz
_LZ0ZLLL0! 6L

LZ0Z/LL/LO! 8L
1202Z/LLILO;  LL.
L20Z/LL/LO. 9L
120Z/LL/L0;  Sb
L202/LLILO: bl

1202711100 €L

L202/L 1110 2L

120Z/LLL0. LL
_120Z/LLL0. Ol

1202/1L/L0.
L20Z/L 1110,
L202/11/10:
L20Z/LLIL0)
L20Z/LL/LO!
1202/LLILO.
L20Z/LLILO.

2]

— N @ < ID© ™~

LZ0Z/LLIL0.
eleq Y594 aun



AONJOHIWE LSVOD HLNOS|
AONADY SW3 ALNNOD 0S|

NOILNTIOd ¥IV ALNNOD O7S:
ONI “FHYMAHYH 3OV SHINIA;
ONI ‘FHYMAYYH 30V S.HINIW.

__ONI ‘JHVMQYVH 30V S.HININ'
ONI "FUYMAHVH 3OV SHINIA:

ONI'Hvmaadar:

_ONI'HYM3a & r:

__ONI'dvm3aar,

] wzo_Eo_z:s__zoo HILHVHO|

. SNOLLYOINNAWOD HILHVHD!

L1ANVHE VD

071 T¥0IGaW 33ML aNnos
NHVAVHY

ONI 'LNIWAIND3 3yl HYLSTIV
ONI 'INIWIND3 Jul4 ¥YISTIV,
OT1'VSN SYOHIV,

SYD1VOO0S:!

I1VH d QlAva’

_ SNOLLVOINNINWOD HILHVHO,
_SNOLLYOINNIWINOD H3LHVHO!
SLHYd OLNY 1S3N0YYO);

_ VOIMAWY 40 YNveE;

'VOIMIWY S0 INvE

VOIHINY 40 MNVE;

VOIMIWY 40 NV
VOINTWY 40 ¥NvE

VORIINWY 40 JINVE!
VOIMINY 40 3INVE

VOIMIWY 40 YNV

VOIHIWY 4O ¥NvE |

VOINIINY 40 YNV,
_VOIYIWY 40 YINVE!

. VOIHIWY 40 iNVE

VOIYIWY 40 YNvE
VOIHIAY 40O XNvE!
YOI 40 YNV
SUWBN s Jopuaj.

I LINJWHOVLLY

109G’ L Ler omN

€095} L2V 062,
_QOLS'LIZY06T;
__ELes’LIeyo6e.
_ELTSLITY 062,
ELZSL12y08Z
8095'L1ZY'062,
8099'112¥°06Z
 §525'L1ZY'062;
_LOVS'LLZY 06T
LOVS'LLZY 062,
9095"LLZY"062
19025°1124°062]
_ €0ES’LLZY062:
ZLeS 112062
 TUTTLLZY06Z
.. EOESLley06e; : ——
LOPSLIZY 062, . R
€085 LL2Y 062
L0VS'LL2h062;
LOVS'LLEY'062:
1095’ L L2V 062
2048121062
204512V 062
2048112062
2051127 062
20L5'L L2V 062
2045112V 062!
Z0LS'LL2Y 062,
205’12V 062,
_20LS'L12Y 062
_ 20LSLLZY062!
_20LS'LIZY06T

VORIFWY 40 INVE

Nohm Lley omw

£096'1LZY'062;
9.25'L 12062
#100v,

_Em_m a:v_omn 2699 .__mam._ ISEELS
Humhm._m tmow._ FEw 00°¢9

.‘ Jod ..wn:: E....E.Eicm jo _msw:o._ oN. ar )
) o_n_l gsn’ PN 9l
o . v_uo_umn 1oL
. m._m:mummu_ Upaso. oN £8-
) sioualsEy €98

_pepesjun g6 1913/02°9£9
. mtmn_EE:q _u:m: 19162
swa g Ws oowmnwooororm¢ww%ﬁom 86" 14
awc._oE_ L ws ommwmwoomoormvwwﬁoom 186'v0C
mwm:o:n 1o} JuswissINquial Pt £€9°L
mm__na:m [edipaw; mo 168
_E:m._ wm__aa:m aocw £9'8€C
__Sieyleang - ﬂoon L8°98¢
m:m w_.<oo m.rz<n_ (€1)513S 3dd 16°2EL’ 9
[eruay :mgxo\:om}.\ 0E'L0k
ni/y'e08
hmn._.Em,n..wm_. .mmu_fmm _m:o_mm&oh.m..,u.o,.wcm_,w
Nzus m—mNoNoooFoFmvaﬁuum.Nw.wrF
NE ws 1829l _.o—oro_,mvmwﬁuum .02°€6
£6993 Jo} bmﬂmn 'eL'CES
s|qed B §EoE S§8Iy - UoZewe g1 681
w_nmo nw: :onEm mn i
. _Swed gam - _._onEm 80" o_.m\
) L._n_m_mo 9L 8e-
coaﬂm v_oou Eano uozewe'eg 5L
hoﬁmum wpy cONmEm i89°€Z
__ uozZewe ||a340 26 SE-
21989 Jwpy uozew
n:_._ [eae.1 gsn conEm ¢m E
ww_nmu Iwpy g ._wﬁ__% :onEm £9'88
__ -lig3ydisL L
EmEmu nm; uozewe 60°cy
m_nmu. qsn uozewe; 9L°0L
.o_n__mo lwpy co~mEm 620}
’ wm>:mu 008
s ._._n_m_mo L wnm-
:o:n_._uwoo

1202 °LE - L AMVNNVT
ONILLSIT MO3HO

ALMOHLNY 3¥14 S31LID IAIL

[on}.€1°SE0’ L

vm¢h
mm#m
T6YL

\LBYL

L6YL

LevL
hevL

_loerL

062

[06¥L
68YL

__88vL
88vL.

..... b
iosyL

_S8¥L
_S8vL
vev.
‘espL

z8vL

I8VL
8L

_08pL
\B6LYL
6L¥L

_IBLVL

LpL

BLYL
8LYL
L.

6LYL
BLVL
6Lt
BLYL

. ......mDR |

sune
_6LbL

BLYL

6L,
unowy|

+202tL/L0,
1202/vL/L0]

1202IYL/L0;
L202IVLIL0,

120291110,
120Z/P1/10,
120ZIL/10]
1202/ L/L0}

_LeoegmLie: _

L20Z/VLIL0.
L2027 L/L0]

_L20zmLIL0.

1202/7L/L0.
L20Z/¥L/L0
120Z/YL1L0)
1202 LIL0;
1202 L/L0!
L202IHLILO;
120D
LZ0Z/LL/10;
1202/LL/10;
1202/LL/1L0:
LZ0Z/LL/LO;

1202/LL/10;

1202/LLIL0"
1202/11/10]
12021 1/10,
1202/L /10,
1202/L L/L0;
120Z/LL/L0.

L20Z/LLLD.

_L20e/LL/L0;
L20e/LHIL0;
120e/LL/10:
L20Z/LL/LO;
1202/11/10.

L20Z/LLILO.

L20Z/LL/L0;
+202/LL/1L0;

#0040 3jeq YoauD:

..... Nm4
T
05
6%
8t
Ly
o

_sp.

Rid
ey
e
(54
14
aur



I INJWHOVLLY

FHOWLIHM 'AQISSYD '1H3g3rT,
ONI 'ONTHLIDVAI]

HOV38 HIAOHD 40 ALID'
___ONI'MvM3asr

OT1 SALVIOOSSY B SONITIOD,
SNOILVOINNINNOD HILUVHO!
SNOLLYOINMWNOD HILHVHD!
SNOLLYOINNINNOD ¥3LHVHD |

_ SLYVdOLNV.1SINDHYD.
ONI 'OV 40 30Vd ANV 3yHNE;

ONI ‘DY 40 30vd ANV 3dung’

ONI SOIHAVHD % ONILNId INOOE !

NHVNVHY|
_ m<o._<oow

AlddnS VIMOLINVF 3UVO0Hd|
ATddNS TVIHOLINYF 3HVI0Hd
ATddNS TYIMOLINVF 3HVO0Hd,
00 21410313 8 SV OIIovd!
'ONI 'JHVMAHVH 30V SHININ
ONI "FHVMAHYH 30V SHININ

ONI ‘JHYMANYH 30V SHINIW,

HOOX QHYHOIY:
__X3aad:

_oNI "HYMIaEr
SNOS ® SLLMNO N 7
SNOS 2 SILYNO N 1,
SNITIOD NAHHLYM .

wO_ZOm_._.Om_._m_ 1SVO0D! ]

SNOLLYOINNININOD H3LHVHO!
ONI ‘SHOSSIHJWOD HaNv,
ALIISOW LBLY!

1wy

SSTTIHIM NOZINIA

"0 VLI QGHOTAVL,

"ONI TTOADIEILS
AONZDHINT LSVOD HLNOS

AONIDHIWT LSYOD HINOS|

AONZFDHING 1SVOD HLNOS|
AONIDHINT LSVOD HLNOS!
SUulBN iset _OUCm>..

€089 121062,

L0951 121062

L0vS'LL2Y 062,
_809S'LI2V'062:
€0ES'L 12V 06T
Eﬁ.:#.omm,.
LY LLZY 062

_Lovs'Lizr 062!

_1095L12Y'08Z
L09S'L LZV"062
Sges’Lley'06g,
90€5°L121'062,

EOES'LLEY 062!
10VS'LLZY 062;
 $09G°LLZY 062;
¥095°LLZY 062]

095’ L Ler 062!
LOVS'LLZY 062!

$09G°LLZY 062
_E£2G'LL2Y 062,

5526'L12V062:
1029’k 12 06¢ _.,
8025 L12H'062;
5526'LLeY 062!
€L2G°LLZY06Z

 2zSlLzr06T)

€0ES"LL2Y 062!
9095127062
LOVS'LLZY'06E!
£095'}1.2V"062!
E0vS'LIZY 062!
€0VS'LLZY 062!
€0¥S'LLZ7 062
L09S'LLEY 062!
€065'LL24'06Z]

1095°LLZY'062.

L095412Y 062,
L095"L 125062,
109G'LLZY 062

4100y

mau_zwm __mmm_ 00gve

1ony % 992'L

. >E Emum? ._0_v_c_.am wE m&: :00'SL2
z m uis hwwo_. Fos_.o_.mvww&ﬁom ‘02°e6
2 cus mrmwowooo_.o_.m_&mﬁoom 28'8LL
N 3 E.m...mnnwo_‘oomoo_.mﬁwuﬁom 99°0le

- 052 pdo} Joj mtmq LE'SE
~pona Peq axels Joj ._wnEs_ LE" vNF
Jsjen .w._.._:ocm 1oy ._wn_E:_ wm m¢N
suljjody - SpJed ssauIsSng of' LG
i _mu:mz mm__aa_._m n_o:m £9'9EC
Fw\n Lo - ow\vENF ‘saun mo L8L
wm n:m mc_cmm_o ‘€80l
mm__._n_nSm oz_z<m._o 9.'L6E
mm__nn:m a:_:mm_u hN 85

mm__nnzw ac_:mm_u SG°EL
N slaualse); L§'pE
mw__nn:w ISIWI9E’S
%98p poom __smc_ on ?Eo ¥6'€98'Y
memcu mcaa_sm 6061
) m_E._w_.\__m._Eoo [o8is ssejulels 6¢°|yZ
' peipioeiq - edey apedwieq pggLE
uaoﬂ meo: _uoEEQ ._._n_m_xo L SN. )
o o) mmo_me ._Smc_Eoow.wo swe: oo 006
N __@Iqe9 jonuod o__um._ o¢ z8l
EEQ:. mm_.wm_.o_.c_.o_‘mgwﬁuum 86'702
siely eswigg’ €9
N;N\NC mm?m:o ssejaim _umn__ 2L1°92E
B ruamm 2 o:__ ::o.__u YEEE
~seuy| mco_a ?: 82°08S
_epesy XNy pesdiey S1eolde 09 e L
aoue n_Eoo Sjes-1a)s '00° 0g
v_mo_ Weo} - -2 o .__maw._ 10€"S9Y
m_._m_oa 104 mﬁma vegle
_anss| EmEmw:x £699 ot_an 100'65¢2
BA mv_m._m v_._mn £699 0} L_mn '9.'928
:oan:uwmc

1202 ‘LE - L AMVNNVF

ONLLSIT MO3HO

ALRMOHLNY 3414 S3ILID 3AI4

.L uonels - sapn; vm 6CL'L

0} Loddns [enuue |z/0z & sp'652'S1

ILISL

E]E72

pse
wISL
€16L

2isL
iL1SL
0152
sz

JoLs¢
60sz

'80L
/805,

[80sz

|L0sL.
S0sL

zest
7
'02SL.
1BLSL
816/
LS.
L1GL

_|§08L

¥0SL
¥0SL.

_le0sL
20sL

100SL

8oL
86VL
6L

L0SL

98VL _

unowy

sevL
VEYL
evL
VoL
vBYL

Il 120zIrLIL0.

#0847

1202/82/1L0, L11
_lgoe/ge/Lo; oLt

120Z/82/10; SLL|
1202782110, L1
1202/82/1L0° ELL:
1202/82/10; ZLL
_1202/82/10° LLL
1202/82/L0; OLL:
_ 1202/82/10° 601
120Z/82/10! 801
eozrge/Lo, Lol
120Z/82/L0; 90L
1Z0Z/82/10, SOL.
1202/12/10, YOl
1202/12/10: €01
L202/12/L0; 20
L202/12/10! 101
1202/1E/10: 00l

120Z/12/10 66
LZ02Z/LZ/L0 86!
LZ0Z/12/0; L6}

 1Z02/12/10; 96,

L20Z/L2/L0;  S6
1202/12/L0,  ¥6
1202/12/L0 €6
L202/12/10; 26
1202/12/10. 16
L202/12/L0 06
1202/12/L0! 68

L202/12/L0° 88,
1202/12/10! L8
1202/12/10, 98
1202/¥L/L0° S8,
LZ0Z/VLILO!  ¥8

_120zyLil0. €8

L202ZirL/L0. 28
LZ0Z/PLIL0, 18,
08
_L20ZWLIL0; 6L
w_mn_ YD eun



L INJWHOVYLLY

3JIAH3IS IOVHIAIE _Z_NN<ZOO._.
__ONI'SW3LSAS Zm_m._v_.>._.m_n_<m

_ ONI “FuvmadvH 30V S, xm_z_s_
ONI “IHVMAYYH 30V w.m_m_z_s_
ONI ‘IHVYMAdVH 30V w.m_m_z_s_

SWEN 1SET JODUIA

£5188'88

EOES'LLZP 062 [ewas BuyORW BO1ELLLL Sest .
...mwmm.:#.omm__ _ lesodsip 9 uenjosggggL . vesL
_L09G'1 12V 06: __ons spiseyess ol ! ST gzel
5529°LLZY 062, sayddns hsmm_ﬁee_ AME0'S0L €2l
_ 8925°LLZY 062, Lm__msm:_._xw eYElZ €28l

% Y coan__ 13saQ ) pinowy:
120Z ‘L€ - L AYVANYF ..
ONILSIT MO3HD

ALMOHLNY 3414 S3ILID IAIL

1202/82/10

+202/8Z/10,
1202/82/10
_ 1202/82/L0;
. izoe/8eno:
#909UD| 812 No8YD:

zeL!
Lzt
0zL.
6LL
8LL|
3ury



FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION
PAY PERIOD
12/11/2020 - 12/24/2020
1/1/2021

BY ACCOUNT

5101
5102
5103
5105
5106
5108
5109
5110
5111
5112
5113
5114
5115
5121
5122
5123
5126
5127
5131
5132
5133
5134
5135

Salaries Full time
Salaries Part-Time - PPT
Salaries Part-Time - TPT
Salaries OverTime
Salaries Strike Team OT
Holiday Pay

Sick Pay

Annual Leave Buyback
Vacation Buyback

Sick Leave Buyback
Vacation Pay

Comp Pay

Annual Leave Pay
PERS Retirement

Social Security

PARS Retirement

State Disability Ins.
Deferred Compensation
Health Insurance

Dental Insurance

Vision Insurance

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

66,783.31

2,706.00
35,527.90
5,674.27
11,679.43

2,891.52
2,065.92

20,221.54
9,892.89

1,070.23
125.00
17,101.93
968.16
267.04
121.52
154.34

177,251.00




FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION
PAY PERIOD
12/25/2020 - 01/07/2021
1/15/2021

BY ACCOUNT

5101
5102
5103
5105
5106
5108
5109
5110
5111
5112
5113
5114
5115
5121
5122
5123
5126
5127
5131
5132
5133
5134
5135

Salaries Full time
Salaries Part-Time - PPT
Salaries Part-Time - TPT
Salaries OverTime
Salaries Strike Team OT
Holiday Pay

Sick Pay

Annual Leave Buyback
Vacation Buyback

Sick Leave Buyback
Vacation Pay

Comp Pay

Annual Leave Pay
PERS Retirement

Social Security

PARS Retirement

State Disability Ins.
Deferred Compensation
Health Insurance

Dental Insurance

Vision Insurance

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

62,739.33

3,762.00
29,593.28

9,648.78
4,548.85

1,173.12
9,005.28

20,083.93
9,368.31

1,009.41
125.00
17,101.93
968.16
267.04
121.52
154.34

169,670.28




FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION
PAY PERIOD
01/08/2021 - 01/21/2021
1/29/2021

BY ACCOUNT

5101
5102
5103
5105
5106
5108
5109
5110
5111
5112
5113
5114
5115
5121
5122
5123
5126
5127
5131
5132
5133
5134
5135

Salaries Full time
Salaries Part-Time - PPT
Salaries Part-Time - TPT
Salaries OverTime
Salaries Strike Team OT
Holiday Pay

Sick Pay

Annual Leave Buyback
Vacation Buyback

Sick Leave Buyback
Vacation Pay

Comp Pay

Annual Leave Pay
PERS Retirement
Social Security

PARS Retirement

State Disability Ins.
Deferred Compensation
Health Insurance

Dental Insurance

Vision Insurance

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

67,800.46

5,544.00
30,478.79

1,721.43
4,150.32

43,925.97 *

2,828.64

3,339.84

3,041.22
19,169.17
12,200.87 *

1,365.47 *

195,566.18




STAFF REPORT

Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: February 19, 2021

FROM: Stephen C. Lieberman

SUBJECT: Consideration of Authorization to Execute Agreements for Reimbursement
of Costs Associated with COVID-19 Vaccination Efforts

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize the Fire Chief to execute a reimbursement agreement with the County of San Luis
Obispo (County), the incorporated cities within the county, and the Five Cities Fire Authority, and
associated agreements as may be required by the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) or the State Office of Emergency Services (OES), to facilitate the reimbursement of costs
incurred by the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) associated with supporting the County’s COVID-
19 vaccination efforts.

BACKGROUND

The County Public Health Agency has been working closely with emergency services providers
throughout the county to prepare, open, and begin operating three Public Points of Distribution
(PPODs) to administer COVID-19 vaccines to the public. Through these efforts, the PPODs are
designed to administer up to a total of 3,000 doses of COVID-19 vaccines per day. The effective
administration of vaccines through the PPODs are essential to ending the COVID-19 pandemic.

Because the timing and scale of a countywide vaccination effort exceeds the operational capacity
of the County, a request was made to utilize the County Type Ill Incident Management Team (XSL
IMT). The Incident Management Team executed a “Letter of Expectation” with the County and
has planned, constructed and is now operating two PPOD sites in the county. Local government
public safety and other staff have been requested to work at the PPOD sites. The managers of
the seven cities and the County have negotiated a proposed agreement that will enable the cities
and the FCFA to receive reimbursement (Federal and/or State funding) of any additional or
extraordinary costs incurred in support of the vaccination effort. Any costs not recovered from the
County may be submitted for COVID-19 cost reimbursement through FEMA and/or the State of
California. FCFA was identified as a signatory of the proposed agreement as the organization is
a Joint Powers Authority (JPA).

FISCAL IMPACT

There are no direct fiscal impacts related to the proposed action; however, authorizing the
execution of the reimbursement agreements will facilitate the recovery of costs incurred by the
FCFA in supporting the County’s COVID-19 vaccination efforts, such as overtime and other
extraordinary expenses directly related to assistance at the County’s vaccine clinics. FCFA is



incurring unanticipated staff costs in an effort to support this critical initiative. The Fire Chief is
tasked with cost and time tracking with the assistance of the FCFA Treasurer.
ALTERNATIVES
The following alternatives are provided for the Council’s consideration:
1. Authorize the Fire Chief to execute the Agreement and any ancillary agreements to

enable reimbursement of the FCFA’s costs associated with the COVID-19 vaccine
efforts required by FEMA or OES; or

2. Authorize the Fire Chief to execute the Agreement and require the Fire Chief to return
to the Board for authorization of execution of any ancillary FEMA or OES agreements;
or

3. Provide other direction to staff.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Agreement Between the County of San Luis Obispo, the Cities of Arroyo Grande,
Atascadero, Grover Beach, Morro Bay, Paso Robles, Pismo Beach, San Luis Obispo,
and the Five Cities Fire Authority for Countywide Covid-19 Vaccination Effort
Assistance

2. Letter of Expectations for the COVID-19 Vaccinations

PREPARED BY
Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief

Staff Report: Consideration to Authorize Agreements for Reimbursement of Costs Associated
with COVID-19 Vaccination Efforts Page 2
February 19, 2021



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO, THE CITIES OF ARROYO GRANDE,
ATASCADERO, GROVER BEACH, MORRO BAY, PASO ROBLES, PISMO BEACH, SAN LUIS OBISPO, AND
THE FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY FOR COUNTYWIDE COVID-19 VACCINATION EFFORT ASSISTANCE

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on February 2, 2021 by and between
the Cities of Arroyo Grande, Atascadero, Grover Beach, Morro Bay, Paso Robles, Pismo Beach, and San
Luis Obispo (collectively, the “Cities” or individually, a “City”), the County of San Luis Obispo (“County”),
and the Five Cities Fire Authority (“Authority”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Cities, County, and Authority (collectively, the “Parties” or individually, a “Party”)
agree that a coordinated and cooperative vaccination response to the COVID-19 pandemic is in the best
interest of all residents of San Luis Obispo County; and,

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that an expedited COVID-19 vaccination effort is essential to protect
public health and safety of San Luis Obispo County residents and to fully reopen local businesses and
schools to support the economic recovery process for our region and return daily life to as close to that
which existed prior to the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic; and,

WHEREAS, the Parties understand that the timing and scale of this countywide vaccination effort
exceeds the operational capacity of the County and its Public Health function and the Cities and Authority
commit to assist this effort with resources that would be reimbursable by the County with Federal and/or
State funding received that was dedicated to pay for this vaccination effort; and,

WHEREAS, the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (H.R. 133), which was signed into law on
December 27, 2020 by President Trump, includes $4.5 billion in funding to be allocated to states, localities,
and territories to plan, prepare for, administer, monitor, and track coronavirus vaccines and ensure broad
distribution and access; and,

WHEREAS, in addition to receiving Federal funding from H.R. 133, a Party may receive additional
funding for vaccine distribution from the Federal government as well as from State government such as
through Governor Newsom’s proposed State budget for FY 2021-22, which includes $350 million for State-
sponsored vaccine distribution efforts; and,

WHEREAS, President Biden has indicated that additional Federal funding may be made available
to states and local agencies to support vaccination efforts and defray or cover all costs; and

WHEREAS, the Parties agree to work together to support this significant and historic vaccination
effort with resources specified below at the request of the County Public Health Officer and consistent
with the “Vaccination Letter of Expectation” approved by the Public Health Officer and the County’s
Incident Management Team to protect the health and safety of all San Luis Obispo County residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. RECITALS: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated hereby by this reference.

Page 1 of 5



2.

5.

ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT: The following is an Assistance Agreement between the above-named
Parties negotiated specifically for the COVID-19 vaccination of citizens of San Luis Obispo County
(“Incident”).

SCOPE OF ASSISTANCE: The Parties commit to providing necessary resources to carry out the COVID-
19 vaccination effort throughout the County as requested in the “Vaccination Letter of Expectation”
approved by the County Public Health Department and the County’s Incident Management Team and
attached hereto as Exhibit A. These resources include staffing and out of pocket expenses such as
Personal Protective Equipment that represent marginal costs for the vaccination effort as set forth in
Sections 4 and 5 below. Staffing assistance from the Cities and Authority will largely come from each
Party’s respective fire department, though staffing from other Party departments may also be used if
necessary. Necessary resources will be determined by each Party in consuitation with the County and
the County Incident Management Team based on resource capacity and availability, as some Parties
do not have a separate fire department but are served by a multi-agency fire service or are themselves
a fire department/authority.

REIMBURSABLE COSTS: Additional costs being borne by a Party related to the incident will be included
in those considered for reimbursement. The following items are reimbursable costs to a Party by the
County for assistance to the County in this COVID-19 vaccination effort which would be similar to
reimbursable costs incurred by the County:

a. Additional staff hired specifically to support the incident.

b. Additional staff hired to provide substitute/backfill for existing Party staff who are assigned
to support the Incident.

¢. Existing staff that is furloughed or otherwise unable to work due to COVID-19 restrictions or
office closures, but brought back to support the Incident.

d. Salary (including both base pay and any applicable overtime incentives, but excluding Party
overheads such as employee benefits, insurance and payroll taxes) for staff working on the
Incident who are not relieved of normal duties.

i. Because assignments of hourly personnel are anticipated to be in addition to normal
duties, and not instead of, in all cases where staff is eligible for overtime incentives,
cost for both base pay and overtime incentives will be included, regardless of whether
the individual is being paid overtime.

e. Cost for equipment, consumables, and other needs specifically purchased for use while
providing support to the incident including, but not limited to: Personal Protective Equipment
(PPE), food, water, paper, pencils, and pens.

f. Cost for equipment and consumables taken for use at the Incident that will require
replacement at the end of the Incident such as items listed in subsection 4.e above.

EXCLUDED FROM REIMBURSABLE COSTS: The following items are Party expenses that will not be

eligible for reimbursement by the County with Federal or State funding associated with vaccination
efforts. Where appropriate, such expenses will be tracked, and documentation of such expenses will
be provided to the County, as they may be reimbursable through the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) or the State of California and information related to the types of costs will be provided
by each Party to the County:

a. Staff assigned to the Incident who are relieved of normal duties.

b. Agency and management overhead for staff assigned to the Incident.

c. Existing equipment and consumables that are not purchased for the Incident and do not

Page 2 of 5



require replacement at the end of the Incident.

d. Costs for non-expendable property purchases made by a Party that can be repurposed for
non-Incident purposes.

e. Costsincurred by a Party not directly related to COVID-19 vaccination activities.

REIMBURSEMENT: The County commits to reimburse the Cities and Authority for eligible costs
defined in Section 4 using Federal or State funding received by the County dedicated to COVID-19
vaccination efforts. In the event that Federal or State funding does not fully cover the reimbursable
costs incurred by the Cities or Authority for the vaccination efforts, the County will reimburse Cities
or Authority based on the formula defined below in subsection 6.b. The County agrees it will pursue
additional reimbursement from FEMA and the State of California for all such costs on behalf of all the
Parties. Where reimbursement is received from FEMA or the State, the County will provide funds to
all Parties in accordance with this Agreement.

a. To ensure timely and accurate cost tracking for reimbursement, all Parties agree to provide
the County with documentation of ongoing total eligible costs/expenditures incurred within
thirty (30) days of each completed quarter and within thirty (30) days of the termination of
the County led vaccination effort, hereinafter referred to as the “Final Cost Reporting.” Should
a cost be excluded due to untimely submission, such costs will still be included with costs
submitted for COVID-19 cost reimbursement through FEMA and/or the State of California.

b. In the event that Federal or State funding provided to the County is less than the total costs
incurred by all Parties, the County will reimburse each City or the Authority the proportion of
the funding received in comparison to the total costs.

i. Example: If the County receives 75% of the total costs incurred by Parties, the County
will reimburse each Party 75% of their individual agency eligible costs.

1. [fthe total vaccination effort cost is equal to $5,000,000 and the total Federal
and State funding received by the County is $3,750,000, a Party with an
eligible total cost to provide assistance of $500,000 would be reimbursed
$375,000 by the County.

c. Reimbursement will be issued within sixty (60) days following the receipt by the County of
eligible Federal or State funding, or within sixty (60) days of the Final Cost Reporting if Federal
or State funding is received by the County prior to the termination of the County led
vaccination effort.

d. The Parties acknowledge that other eligible funding received for vaccination work will be
applied towards reimbursement of eligible costs identified in Section 4.

OTHER PARTIES: Should the County seek the assistance from other government agencies located in
the San Luis Obispo County in relation to the County-wide vaccination efforts not party to this
agreement, including special districts, an amendment of this agreement adding said party should be
completed in agreement by all existing Parties.

LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY: Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create an
employee/employer relationship between the Parties or as between any Party and another Party’s
respective employees. All third-party claims against any Party shall be adjudicated pursuant to the
applicable tort claims act and shall be referred to the agency or agencies whose employees or agents
were involved in the incident that gave rise to the claim. Each Party shall be solely responsible for
the acts, errors or omissions of its participating employees and agents and shall be solely responsible
for any claims or liabilities arising out of the services and activities of its participating employees and
agents, including but not limited to worker’s compensation. No Party shall seek indemnification from

Page 3 of 5



10.

11.

12,

13.

another Party for, and shall hold each other Party harmless against the acts, errors or omissions of
the Party’s employees and agents.

NON-DISCRIMINATION: All Parties shall not discriminate against any person or class of persons in
violation of any and all Federal, State, and local non-discrimination laws.

COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS: All Parties agree to abide by all laws and regulations applicable to the
expenditure of public funds, including but not limited to, the audit of the expenditure of these funds
by Federal, State, or County for compliance with regulations and the inclusion of provisions
guaranteeing compliance with all labor laws and regulations pertinent to public funds.

SEVERABILITY: The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of the Agreement.

TERM: This Agreement is effective as of the Effective Date above and shall continue in effect until
terminated by all the Parties. Any Party may terminate their participation in this Agreement by
sending written notice of termination to the other Parties. This Agreement shall automatically
terminate upon the successful completion of the vaccination efforts and as determined by the County
Public Health Department and the Incident Management Team.

NOTICES: Any notices required herein shall be sent to the following individuals:

If to County: If to City of Arroyo Grande: If to City of Atascadero:
Wade Horton

Administrative Office

1055 Monterey St. D430

San Luis Obispo, CA 93408

If to City of Grover Beach: If to City of Morro Bay: If to City of Paso Robles:

If to City of San Luis Obispo: If to Five Cities Fire
Authority:

14. COUNTEPARTS AND EXECUTION: This Agreement may be executed in counterpart signatures and

transmitted by electronic mail with the same force and legal effect as an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date:

Page 4 of 5



SIGNATURES

County of San Luis Obispo:

City of Arroyo Grande:

City of Atascadero:

City of Grover Beach:

City of Morro Bay:

City of Paso Robles:

City of San Luis Obispo:

Five Cities Fire Authority:

Signature/Title Date
Signature/Title Date
Signature/Title Date
Signature/Title Date
Signature/Title Date
Signature/Title Date
Signature/Title Date
Signature/Title Date

Page 5 of 5



COUNTY

5 SAN LUIS
OBISPO Michael Hil)

Penny Borenstein, MD, MPH

To: Joshua Taylor, Incident Commander - XSL IMT3

Subject: Letter of Expectations for the COVID-19 Vaccinations

Your team is being requested to assist the San Luis Obispo County Public Health Department
(SLOPHD) with the Public Points of Distribution (PPOD), to vaccinate the citizens of San Luis
Obispo County.

I, Or. Penny Borenstein, will serve as the Agency Administrator, under the authority of the San
Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors as outlined in H&SC Article 1. | expect you to take
command of the on-site vaccination efforts no later than January 18, 2021 at 0600 hours.

You will work under the direction of the Denise Yi, Vaccination Division Supervisor (VAX). You
may contact her at 805-266-0987 or at ' _
| expect that your Incident Management Team (IMT) will provide command, leadership, and
management of the PPODs. You have tactical authority and responsibility for managing the
operations for your tasking within the framework of legal statutes, current county policies, and
direction provided in both oral and written briefing materials.

Tactical authority is defined as limited to the detailed direction and control of movements
within the POD to accomplish the efficient operations of a site. Any proposed changes to the
PPOD or policy level decisions must be approved by the Agency Administrator as you are
accountable to me.

You are expected to do a compiete and efficient job while providing for SAFETY. Safety for your
team, vaccination staff, and the public is and will remain a major concern throughout the
incident.

Using doctrinal principles of incident management, you must ensure that all actions and
consequences have been analyzed against risk to human life and other values. You are
expected to provide clear leader’s intent at all levels of your organization; use your experience
and judgment and make timely and prudent decisions as the best course of action. You are
expected to maximize opportunities for success through mindful decision making and
heightened situational awareness, while minimizing exposure to risk. This document can be
updated to identify any new issues arising that need to be added to address incident activity.



EXPECTATIONS

* You and your team shall work cohesively with the SLOPHD, the Emergency Operations
Center (EOC), and other entities involved with the COVID-19 planning and response
while communicating effectively and ensuring that all agency concerns are met.

« Provide information and data to SLOPHD when requested

+ Provide daily {or when requested) briefings to the VAX and or others

= Timely information sharing is key. Please keep the VAX updated with the appropriate
critical information. You may use texting, but please make positive contact when
appropriate. Immediate notification will need to be made regarding any:
Significant incident(s) involving response personnel or the public
o Political or public relations issues
o Medical emergencies related to the vaccinations
o Critical resource orders not being filled

o]

» Fiscal integrity is a high pricrity in management of the incident. Maintain effective cost
management based on incident needs ahd ensure all documentation is completed. You
have the authority to purchase without seeking Agency Administrator approval up to
$5,000 dollars per purchase, including entering into agreements, Any purchase,
including agreements, above $5,000 will need Agency Administrator approval.

o Amendment 1/8/2021: XSL IMT personnel are authorized to make necessary

purchases subject to the existing $5,000 single purchase threshold. All
proposed purchases involving leases or other agreements will continue to
be submitted to the EOC for processing.

o All personnel costs will be borne and tracked by the appropriate home agencies. Cost
recovery may be available in the future if funding is made available. Weekly costs
estimates will need to be provided to the EOC Finance Section Chief by the IMT,

« Ensure that PPOD sites used are returned to the property owner with no or minimal
damage.

» Human Resource issues will be reported directly to the appropriate agency supervisor
as soan possible (normally within 24 hours). The incident s to be managed with Zero
Tolerance for Sexual Harassment. Incident personnel who demonstrate any type of
inappropriate behavior should be released immediately with appropriate follow-up
documentation. Inappropriate behavior would include alcohof use, drug use, sexual
harassment, or any violation of personnel or laws. Please make sure | am advised of the
incident.

« If a Union Representative is needed for any'situation, please notify the appropriate
agency supervisor and me immediately to have someone assigned.

Page 2 of 4



s You may be required to work with additional agencies as the incident expands. An
addendum letter will be issued as needed,

» Your team, and others involved, are expected to strictly follow COVID-19 precautions.

JASKING

1. Plan and execute the use of up to three Public Points of Distribution (PPOD) capable
of vaccinating 5,000 people per PPOD/ per week for up to six-months. One in north
SLO County, one in south SLO County, and one in central SLO County (overflow).

a. Sites need to be secured and ready to be coperational by January 18, 2021. Pre-
Existing MOUs will need to be evaluated and used if possible,

b. Sites preferred to be indoors with the ability to scale to a drive thru option
should CDC Guidance change.

2. Develop PPOD site layout and patient flow including having a minimum15 minute
waiting area. Layout should be modeled after current PPOD plan (plan to be provided
by SLOPHD). PPOD site layout plan needs to be completed by January 11th, Technical
Assistance will be provided by SLOPHD. Plan will need to be scalable to match demand

3, Develop plan to administer two doses of COVID-19 vaccine, based on available
supply, to residents of SLO County by June 30, 2021. Plan needs to be submitted to
Agency Administrator for review by January 11th, 2021. Verbal presentation on plan
provided by XSL to EOC Command & General Staff on January 13% for approval.

4, Develop PPOD staffing plan:
a. Staffing plan should be modeled after current PPOD staffing plan
b. SLOPHD will provide a co-Task Force Leader at each operational site,
¢, Plan should be developed for 5 day a week 8-hour operational periods for six-
months
d. Plan needs to be submitted to Agency Administrator for review by January 11th,
2021.

5. The IMT should coordinate staffing needs for PPOD using trained and certified medical
professionals. IMT is responsible to coordinate with tocal fire agencies, private and
public ambulance agencies and other public safety related agencies. Available resource
staffing needs to meet the desired output of 1000 vaccinations per day/per site.

6. Ensure the appropriate transportation and storage of the vaccine while maintatning the
cold chain management. Will need to provide logs to VAX.

7. The San Luis Obispo County Emergency Operations Center is the single orderfng point
for materials, supplies, and personnel (excluding public and private safety agencies). All
orders will be placed through the ECC including positions that are UTF.

Page 3 of 4



8. Provide VAX the following forms/data/reports daily (Separate detailed schedule will be

forthcoming):

a. Completed Vaccine Screening Forms from each site; delivered to 2191 Johnson

Ave,, 51O

b. Temperature logs for stationary refrigerator/freezer. (data logger will be provide

by SLOPHD),delivered to 2191 johnson St, SLO

. Ifvaccines are being transported from SLOPHD in coolers, temperatures will

need to be logged hourly to monitor for temperature excursions.
d. Number of doses administered by each PPOD
Number of doses wasted (defective equipment, dropped, etc.) at PPODs
f.  Doses on hand at PPODs (count of vials remaining)

®

Your team’s expertise and assistance are greatly appreciated.

Signed on December 30, 2020
D Recowrahly Sianditure

X

Joshua Tavlor
Incident Commander- XSt IMT3
Signed byv: b8743e50-312e-4fff-95c0-dc756ede4cald

7 s e

Penny Bnrezdein
Agency Adfinistrator

Page 4 ;:)f 4



W\‘Jm"'l _
| d __
e

a0 STAFF REPORT

TO: Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: February 19, 2021
FROM: Stephen Lieberman, Fire Chief / Executive Officer

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Purchasing Policy for the Five Cities Fire Authority

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the attached Purchasing Policy
specifically for the use of the Authority to acquire equipment, goods and services.

BACKGROUND

Since the inception of the Five Cities Fire Authority (“Authority”) in 2010, the Authority has been
using the Purchasing Policies of the City of Arroyo Grande. The City of Arroyo Grande, City of
Grover Beach and the Oceano Community Service District entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement (“the Agreement”) in 2010 to establish the Authority. The Agreement requires the
Authority to use the policies of Arroyo Grande until such time as the Authority adopts its own
procedures. Section 4, subsection D (3) states, “City of Arroyo Grande Personnel Regulations
and other policies and procedures shall apply to the Authority and its empioyees until replacement
regulations, policies and procedures are adopted by the Authority.

Section 5 of the Agreement, sets forth the general powers of the Authority. Subsection M of
Section 5 states the Authority shall have the powers to “Adopt rules, regulations, policies, bylaws
and procedures governing the operation of the Authority.” Staff submits the attached purchasing
policy is necessary and vital to the continued and effective operations of the Authority and is more
adapted to the immediate needs of the Authority.

The purchasing policy is to obtain quality supplies, services, vehicles, and equipment required for
proper operation of the Fire Authority at the lowest price. The lowest price is not always the sole
factor in evaluating the value of purchases. This policy establishes that service, quality, timelines,
and price are all factors for evaluating the value of purchases.

These policies and procedures are designed to ensure that purchases made by the Authority staff
comply with State, as well as Fire Authority requirements. These policies and procedures do not
contain or repeat State requirements, nor is it intended to conflict with or supersede State
requirements. In the event of any conflict between these policies and procedures and State law
or Five Cities Fire Authority Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, the more stringent requirement
shall control.



FISCAL IMPACT

There is no specific fiscal impact related to the Boards adoption of the attached purchasing
policy.

ALTERNATIVES
The following alternatives are provided for the Board’s consideration:
1. Adopt the attached purchasing policy and give staff direction to implement these
policies for further acquisition of equipment, goods and services,
2. Do not adopt these purchasing policies and continue to use the City of Arroyo

Grande'’s purchasing policies, or
3. Provide other direction to staff.

ATTACHMENTS

1. “Draft” Five Cities Fire Authority Purchasing Policies (formatting issues to be
resolved)

PREPARED BY

D. Hale, General Counsel
S. Lieberman, Fire Chief/Executive Officer

Staff Report: Consideration of Adoption of Purchasing Policies Page 2
February 19, 2021



PURCHASING POLICIES
AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

Revised February 2021



L INTOQUCHION .ottt ettt st sb et et es s e st eee e e ete s esseseessesonsseen 3
II. LE@al BaASIS....ciiiiiieiiiiinicieintrct ettt sttt st e ee e e te e e see s e s e e e s 3
I BABECS ottt r ettt ae st a st e e e e en st e e e s e sneneesesaesessens 4
A.  Confidential INfOrMAtion........coceeeieeieeeieeteieeeeeee ettt es et e evees e es e snaea 4
B.  Employee Interest in Supplies/COntractors ........c.oeeeevevieereeeieseseeeesreeeeeereseesesessssesesesas 4
C. Standards and BHHICS ......covueierieieiirieseceeee et s esesee e e sesessee s e 4
D.  Gifts and Rebates ......c.ocvcvvervmrereeirrecireeiceesrce e ..o cenrenrrentnas 4
E. Vendor-Paid Meals.......c.ccocninininmieircnecreeeeeneaesee s B i e eesenenan e 4
F. Purchasing for Personal Use Prohibited ...........ccccooeeeieeiciiiiiiiinnceeeeee e eee e 5
IV, GENETal POIICIES ....coruiiiiiiiiicceceirtice ettt et s e aen e e e e et e e s e s e s sesee e e 5
V. Purchasing CateZOTies. .....ccceerurienumrrrrieetereeieseesesesiis i crrestoseesesssseesssits i reseseesssssessssssssssssssess
A, Pty Cashl. oo snsomsessmmmpsizsssimssszs ssallPivsssssicen resesersmsrnseisise S O T— I
B.  Minor Purchases Less Than $2,500.00. 27 SO, o A 1
C.  General Purchases Greater than $2,500.00. .
D.  Major PUIChases ..........coiuiuiuieiiiiiiiicececcinieenest i el enenae s sess e e teasssss s eseseeenanesesese e s
E. Professional SErviCes........coeuiusiecenrcccvrrenrerrarrrersees Ml sesesessssassesersrnsarorsassessssassssssssssss
F.  Public Project CONIACES.......uviiieericiiiiriiienrieeesesesee e i ciiaense et e seeeessneesessessssseesessseesesas
VI  Micellaneous ProviSions .........ccueeeiiioveiiiieeiiieineesseeeseseeeanas
A.  Battalion Chief Responsibilities:..... ...coivieiiiiririiioiniiitieieeieeeeeeseseeeseeseressesese e seseesene
C. Recycling:....cccoccvvimrvicvevennnnncrnnne S & OO RS
D.  Sole Source Procuremen!t ..................................................................................................
E. Cancellations . .......ceeveeiii ivnennreeneenneenne. Moo evvenserssnenesnersanesas s sesanssrrerateesnetssaasnasentenntes 3
F. Stockless Purchasing............cooucevevrvuirnruennnnnis b sviviinnscinncnsssnosnsecmeessnrnnissnessnsessnesnessnessens 3
G.  Specific Blanket Contracts Bt ooscunrvnnasnne B e e asesnsnsseesaniostontsostontersnranessassneranessrostenstnatenns 4
I. Inventory.................... i RO o o B i s i e rerreernennateneseannasesontentenneserrreresamness 4
VIL. Insurance Requ1rements ............................................................................................................ 5
A. InSurance REQUITEIMENLS ..... i iiiicvrureesiieeeiieesiseeeesseeessesenssesessesesssasssssssessnnrsssnsssssessenessas 5
B. Worker’s Compensation INSUTANCE .........cc.eeeverereeereeeeeeeeniesesteisseeeeeeesseeeeeneesssseessssssenens 6
C.  Professional Liability INSUIANCE.........cccvevreiiieeeeeecieeciee et eee e 6
D.  Endorsements......... B et er et 4o b a4 se et s e e rerenaeeeantaasaaee bbb anenanr e nnten 6
Vill.  Requests for Proposals/Qualifications ............cceeeeeeuevieiniciienicereeeeeseeeee e eeeee e 8
A.  Introduction...... oo ntnsssstaans aasa sheasnteaa e aea s naeataanas s b s dsaanasnasass st st s se s naesanne Tan s 8
B.  Form of RFP/RFQ......coiiiiiiiitiniertsteteteee ettt es et e seee e enessssesessssnssa e esens 8
C.  RFP/RFQ PIOCEAUIES .......oeoiriieciiiitetieeteee ettt srese et et e se e e ne e s 9
IX.  Bidding PrOCEAUIES......corieiiiiiiiiiicieteserirerce ettt sttt s eee st s senenn 10
A.  Submission of Requirements to Board..........ccccooeeiieeeieeecneiicse et een e 10
B. Solicitation OF BidS.......ccccuiuiiiriciuieineeiereiieteieieesteesr e eteere s eesseseeeesenseessenssessssenas 10
D Bidder’s Security DEPOSit .....cccveieireciiiiiieiseieereresee ettt ee et se e s e 10
E ExXecution Of CONMIACL.......cciiiirieiiieie et ers et e st s e es e ns e seene s s 11
X. Contract MaNagEMENL ..........coveririieeeenenieerrenriseeerraeesesesessssssssssoseessessessesssssessssssssesssssses 11

CONTENTS




I. INTRODUCTION

The Five Cities Fire Authority (“Fire Authority”) was formed pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement (“JPA”) dated June 7, 2010 between the City of Arroyo Grande, the City of Grover Beach, and
the Oceano Community Services District. The Fire Authority is administered by a governing board (“the

Board”).

Since its inception, the Fire Authority has utilized the purchasing policies of the City of Arroyo Grande.
The Fire Authority has now determined that an updated Purchasing Pelicies and Procedures Manual is
necessary to ensure that the organization has the flexibility it needs to-enableits staff to make the purchases
and requisitions necessary for its operations and to ensure that there is adequate structure and record
keeping for oversight and accountability. The Fire Authority 1s promulgating this policy in accordance
with Section 5, subsection “M” of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, créang the Five Cities Fire
Authority dated June 7, 2010.

The basic purchasing policy is to obtain quality supplies, services. vehicles, and equipment required for
proper operation of the Fire Authority at the lowest price. It is recognized that the lowest price is not the
sole factor in evaluating the value of purchases. Service, quality, timeliness, and price are all factors for
evaluating the value of purchases.

These policies and procedures are designed to ensure that purchases made by the Fire Authority staff
comply with State, as well as Fire Authority requirements. These policies and procedures do not contain
or repeat State requirements, nor 15 it intended to conflict with or supersede State requirements. In the
event of any conflict between these policies and procedures and State law or Five Cities Fire Authority
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, the more stringent requirement shall control.

II. LEGAL BASIS

Section 5 of the JPA provides that the Fire Authority “...is authorized, in its own name, to do all acts
necessary for the exercise of said pewers for said purposes.” Included within Section 5 of the Joint Exercise
of Powers Agreement, are the express powers of the Fire Authority that include the powers to “...[c]ontract
for the services of engineers, attorneys, planners, financial and other necessary consultants.... Acquire,
lease, construct, own, manage, maintain, dispose of or operate (subject to the limitations herein) any
buildings, works or improvements.... Acquire, hold, manage, maintain, or dispose of any other property
by any lawful means, including without limitation gift, purchase, eminent domain, lease, lease-purchase,
license or sale.... Adopt rules, regulations policies, bylaws and procedures governing the operation of the
Authority.” Section 4(E)(2)(g) of the JPA provides that the Fire Chief has the authority to approve
expenditures of up to $50,000.00 without the Board’s approval.

These purchasing policies and procedures are based on the expressed powers provided by Section 5 of the
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement and other pertinent provisions of that agreement.



III. ETHICS

A, Confidential Information

Information furnished by suppliers and/or contractors in open market bidding regarding price, terms,
performance specifications or other data will be held confidential until after award for purchase. This shall
not apply to public bid openings. After award of bid, all papers pertainitig to a transaction are public
information and will be available for review upon request by an interested person, unless good cause exists
for a bidder to specifically request that certain proprietary 1nf01:mat10n {under patent, trademark, or

copyright) not be released.
B. Employee Interest in Supplies/Contractors

No Fire Authority employee who participates in the selection or approval of a contract for products, sources
of supply, specifications or who has supervisory responsibility for such employees, shall have any financial
interest in the company which furnishes the supplies or services being procured.

C. Standards and Ethics

The very highest ethical standards will be maintained in all purchasing activities. All purchasing shall be
in accord with appropriate rules of the Fire Authority and the State of California Government Code, as well

as the standards of good business practice.

D. Gifts and Rebates

Every officer and employee of the Fire Authority are expressly prohibited from accepting any rebate, gift,
money, or anything of value whatsoever, when 1t could be perceived in any way as intent to influence the

employee in his/her official capacity.

Officers and employees may aceept token advertising items (e.g. pens, hats, coffee mugs, etc.) so long as
the value remains below mandated disclosure limits set by the Fair Political Practices Commission limits
for gifts for the current year. Additionally, other gifts may only be accepted when approved by the Fire
Chief and shared with other employees in the department. Gifts accepted by the Fire Chief shall not exceed
the Fair Political Practices Comamission’s gift limitations.

Any and all rebates that are given in the regular course of business will be turned over to the Fire Chief.
The Fire Chief will use the rebates in a way that maximizes utility for the Fire Authority.

E. Vendor-Paid Meals

Vendor-paid meals may be accepted in limited circumstances. There are times when it is acceptable for a
Fire Authority employee to accept a meal paid for by a vendor. Every officer and employee of the Fire
Authority are expressly prohibited from accepting any meal, when it could be perceived in any way as
intent to influence the employee in his/her official capacity.

4



Employees may only accept vendor-paid meal if the following criteria are met:
e Vendor is in attendance
e There is a legitimate business purpose to the meeting with the vendor.
o The meal is for the convenience of the participants or process.
e The meal is promptly reported to your manager.
e The meal is valued under the Fair Political Practices Commission’s disclosure limits for the

current year.
¢ No alcoholic beverages are paid for by the vendor.

F. Purchasing for Personal Use Prohibited

Purchases shall not be made for any Fire Authority employeg’s personal use using the Fire Authority's
procurement personnel, facilities, processes or accounts. -

IV. GENERAL POLICIES AND DEFINITIONS

A. GENERAL POLICIES.

The basic purchasing policy of the Fire Authority is to obtain supplies, services, vehicles, and equipment
needed for the proper operation of its various departments/divisions at the lowest possible cost. This will
be accomplished through the use of quotes, and competitive bidding whenever possible (or required). The
Purchasing functions are decentralized, with each department/division responsible for compliance with
Fire Authority policies and procedures. The following is a summary of the policies and procedures

established herein:

* No purchase will be approved or undertaken unless an appropriation has been established through
either the adopted annual budget by the Board or approval of additional appropriations as an
amendment to the annual budget.

e All purchases shall be of the quality necessary to suit the intended purpose of the purchase, shall
be suitable and beneficial to the Fire Authority, and shall be in the Fire Authority’s best interest.

e The dollar limits for purchases and bids are established by the Board. Purchases shall not be split
to avoid the required procedures or certain dollar limits.

e Where possible, the Fire Authority will consider the use of cooperative purchasing or blanket
contracts for goods and services, as such contract may provide savings.

e Receipt of goods or services will be verified and approved by the appropriate official prior to
payment of invoices.

e The emergency purchase of goods is authorized under certain conditions.

These purchasing policies and procedures will allow the Fire Authority to spend tax money and public
funds in the most prudent fashion. With a formal system of buying goods and services, including a

purchase order system, the Fire Authority clearly specifies what it buys, avoids disputes with vendors,
provides a full audit trail of purchases, allows level competition to set prices, controls spending within

5



budget limits, creates a positive tone for relationships with vendors, sets a professional standard of
organizational behavior, limits the possibility of waste, creates an organized system of checks and
balances, enhances public trust, and gives the Fire Authority the opportunity to save money.

Budget:

The annual budget is an essential element of the financial planning, control, and evaluation process of the
Fire Authority. This annual budget is reviewed each fiscal year by the Board and is designed as the
financial blueprint for the Fire Authority. Upon adoption, the budget serves as the financial operating plan

for the Fire Authority.

Amendments to the budget may be reviewed and approved by the Beard at any time during the fiscal year
of the Fire Authority.

Grant Funds:

Federal, State, or grant programs may require Ql\ae'cial conditions that are more stringent than Fire Authority
procedures. It is the responsibility of the department acceptmg the grant to ensure that all grant provisions
are complied with.

B. DEFINITIONS

L.

Open Market Purchase Procedure. ‘The Open Market Purchase Procudure does not
invelve aity formal or informal solicitation and evaluation of competitive bids. The
Administrative  Assistant and Chief, or as delegated shall use her/his judgment and
experience in making the decision.

Informal Bidding Procedure. The informal Bidding Procedure is a cost-effective

competive process for canvassing the marketplace to identify vendors most likely to provide
appropriate supplies or services at a reasonable price and in an efficient manner. The
Informal Bidding Procedure requires the Authority to siolicit written, faxed, e-mailed or
verbal price quotations from a minimum of three (3) vendors. The solicitation may be either
written or verbal, as dictated by the circunstanes and judgment of the Purchasing and
Contracting Authority. The bid shall be awarded to the Lowest Bidder unless otherwise
defined within this policy.

Formal Bidding Procedure. Authority should follow the procedures within Section IX,
entitled Bidding Procedures.

Formal Request for Proposal Procedure. Authority should follow the procedures
within Section VIII, entitled Requests For Proposals/Qualifications.



5. Professonal Services. Services of private architectural, landscape architectural,
engineering, environmental, land surveying, or construction project management firms.

6. Special Services. Includes accounting, administration, auditing, custodial, economics,
finance, insurance, labor relations, law, maintenance, mechanics, medicine, planning,
science, technology, and other services which are incidential to the operation of the
Authority.



PURCHASING CATEGORIES

A. Petty Cash

The petty cash fund may be used to reimburse Fire Authority employees for the direct and
immediate purchases of less than $50.00 per transaction. The goods and services that may be
purchased are of minimal costs including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Freight and postal charges due upon delivery;

2. Purchase of materials, goods, supplies, equipment, or services needed for
“immediate use”; and

3. Reimbursement of employee travel/meeting expenses.

A “Petty Cash Voucher Form” must be completed by the person requesting petty cash and
approved by his/her Fire Captain. A detailed receipt itemizing each charge must support all
expenditures. Advances of petty cash are permitted on.a limited basis where the person will make
the purchase and turn in the receipt and unused funds wathin the same or next business day. Petty
cash reimbursements should be requested in a timely fashion but no later than two weeks after the
purchase date. The Open Market Purchasing procedure shall be used for this category of

purchases.
B. Minor Purchases Less Than $2,500.00.

Purchases of equipment, goeds and services valued at $2,500.00 or less do not require a purchase
order but do require Fire Captain approval. Budgeted and unencumbered appropriations must be
available prior to making any approved purchases . All original invoices and/or receipts for such
purchases must be autherized, documented, and processed by a Fire Captain. Fire Captains may
initiate purchases costing less than $2.501.00 without soliciting proposals or using a purchase order
except for recurring Purchases. Purchases occurring on a regular interval (e.g. monthly, quarterly,
etc.) require a Purchase Order by a Battalion Chief even if the anticipated individual purchases
may not meet the minimum $2,501.00 requiring a purchase order. The Open Market Purchasing
procedure shall be used for this category of purchases.

C. General Purchases Greater than $2,500.00.

Purchases of equipment, goods and general services valued at $2,501.00 or more require the use
of a purchase order. General Purchases valued at $2,501.00 up to $10,000.00 require Battalion
Chief approval. General Purchases valued at $10,001.00 up to $49,999.99 require Fire Chief

approval.

All general purchases in this category should include an Informal Bidding. The proposals shall be
attached to the purchase order.



D. Major Purchases

For purchases of equipment, goods and services valued at $50,000.00 and over, the Fire Chief will
submit written specifications to the Board. The Board will then approve the specifications which
will be submitted to the Administrative Assistant Clerk who will prepare a public advertisement
and open public bids. Except where specifically stated otherwise within these procedures, the
Formal Bidding procedure shall be used.

E. Professional Services

Professional Services are those activities performed by a consultant who possesses a high degree
of expertise in a particular profession, such as an attorney, financial services such as equipment
leases, certified public accountant, engineer, or an architect. There is ng bidding requirement for
this type of service, since the consultant is being hired based on his/her qualifications, not on the
lowest bid. Any professional service agreement must have sufficient background analysis to
support the contract. A purchase order is to be issued after the contract is signed to facilitate
budgetary control. Each agreement must be properly executed and held on file by the
Administrative Assistant Clerk.

The Fire Chief may approve up to $50,000.00 of professional services if funds were allocated for
such a contract in the original adopted budget-or any amendment to the budget. Approval by the
Board is required for unbudgeted professmnal services contracts and any professional services
contract with a value of $50,000.00 or more. The Formal Request for Proposal Procedure should

be used.

F. Public Project Contracts

State law regulates the bidding procedures for contracts that quahfy as “Public Projects.” The term
“Public Projects” includes all projects “...for the erection, improvement, painting, or repair of
public buildings and works. .. [w]ork in or about streams, bays, waterfronts, embankments, or work
other work for protection against overflow... [s]treet or sewar work except maintenance or
repair. .. fand] [f]urmshmg supplies or materials for any such project, including maintenance or
repair of streets or sewers.” When the cost of a public project exceeds $5,000.00 the project must
be awarded pursuant to the Farmal Bidding Procedure.



VI. MICELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Battalion Chief Responsibilities:

Prepare standards and specifications.

Maintain lists of supplies and services vendors.

Make purchases in accordance with established policies and procedures.

Verify that an appropriation is available for the purchase.

Anticipate the Battalion’s needs well in advance, in order to mlmmlze the need for

emergency purchases. :

e Review goods and services received to ensure conform1ty W 1th purchase order or
contract. ‘

» Notify the Fire Chief when a cost discrepancy or dissatisfaction Wrth a good or service

arises. No bill should be processed for payment when the goods or services are

unsatisfactory, or if there is a price discrepancy between the originally quoted prlce and

the bill received.

C. Recycling:

It is the policy of the Fire Authority to conseive and protect its natural resources. Therefore, the
Fire Authority shall purchase recycled goods whenever possible.

D. Sole Source Procurement

Sole source procuremerit 1s any transaction in which the services and/or supplies can be obtained
only from one source. The only justification for sole source procurement is when the contractor
or supplier is the sole provider of the service or product or when the contractor or supplier is the
only source permitted to provide a serviee or product because of a manufacturer’s agreement with
the contractor or supplier as a sole representative in a certain geographical area.

The justification for the need to use sole source procurement should be recorded in a memorandum
describing the reason for making a sole source purchase signed by the Fire Captain, Battalion
Chief, or Fire Chief depending on the category of purchase.

E. Cancellations

The Fire Captain, Battalion Chief, or Fire Chief, according to the purchase category, may cancel
an invitation for bids, a request for proposal, or other solicitation, and may reject in whole or in
part, any and all bids or proposals when it is determined that cancellation or rejection serves the
best interest of the Fire Authority.

F. Stockless Purchasing

Stockless purchasing is a specialized technique providing for the purchase of a commodity or
service at an agreed price, but in quantities delivered and paid for as needed by the Fire Authority.
The vendor owns the inventory and the Fire Authority has no responsibility for that inventory.



Stockless purchasing is recommended as an alternative to maintaining significant inventories of
supplies used by numerous departments and offices.

Stockless purchasing uses a blanket contract that designates approximate quantifies, specified time
periods, prices, provisions for price adjustments, delivery, billing procedures and a catalogue of
items covered by the contract. By shifting inventory requirements to the supplier, the Fire
Authority is able to conserve public funds and to dispense with the storage of certain supply items
until requisitioned for delivery by the user department. The types of items typically purchased
under stockless purchasing include office supplies, maintenance and repair parts, and operating

items.
G. Specific Blanket Contracts

A specific blanket contract includes items, prices, quantities, and time frames. It is based upon
established prices for supplies, either picked up by or delivered to the Fire Authority. A contract
of this type offers major price advantages over small individual purchases made by separate
departments. The Fire Chief approves all blanket contracts.

I. Inventory

A fixed asset inventory shall be kept by the Battalion Chiefs. '.Evcry purchase of a furnishing,
vehicle, or piece of equipment (with a value equal to or greater than $500.00) should be recorded
in a fixed asset inventory which includes the cost, date of acquisition; condition, and other pertinent

information.



VII. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Below are the minimum insurance requirements; however, the requirements may vary in
accordance with the type and size of project which would require a higher limit of liability as
recommended. The Fire Chief’is also authorized to waive insurance requirements wherein his sole
discretion circumstances warrant such action.

A. Insurance Requirements

Parties must secure all required policies from a good and resporsible company or companies
authorized to do insurance business in the State of California, and pessessing a Best’s rating of no
less than A-:VII, and furnish to the Fire Authority copies of certificates of insurance with
endorsements on or before the commencement of the term of any agreement. Parties must agree
to ensure that the most current certification of insurance is on file with the Fire Authority at all
times during the term of any agreement. Any deductible or self-insured retention must be declared
and approved by the Fire Authority. At the Fire Authority’s option, parties shall demonstrate
financial capability for payment of such deductibles or self-insured retentions.

Parties performing services for the Fire Authority shall procure and maintain at their own expense,
during the term of the agreement, commiercial general liability insurance of not less than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined smgle limit per occurrence, and Two Millions Dollars
($2,000,000) in the aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury, adv ertising injury, death, loss or
damage resulting from the wrongful or negligent acts of the parties or their officers, employees,

servants, volunteers, subcontractors and agents doing workmg on behalf of the Fire Authority.

Parties shall provide insurance on an occurrence, not claims-made basis, and for purposes of
clarification with the intention of avoiding gaps in eoverage with any umbrella or excess insurance,
personal and advertising injury coverage shall be triggered by an “offense” while bodily injury
and property damage coverage shall be triggered by an “occurrence” during the policy period.

Parties performing services for the Fire Authority shall procure and maintain at their own expense,
during the term of the agreement, commercial vehicle liability insurance coverage personal injury
and ‘property damage, of not less than One million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident combined
single limit, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate, covering any vehicle utilized
by the parties or their officers, employees, servants, volunteers, subcontractors and agents doing
performing the services required by the agreement or less with the express written approval from

the Fire Authority. -

All parties must require that all contractors (including but not limited to subcontractors, architects,
engineers or any other third party with whom the parties enter into contracts, or whom the parties
hire or retain in any way related to the performance of the agreement) provide, at minimum, the
same insurance coverage required of the parties, and name the Fire Authority and the parties as
additional insureds to each policy. Parties must agree to monitor and review the insurance policies
of contractors, and agree to assume all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided
in conformity with all requirements.



All parties must agree that, if any contract or other agreement which requires insurance coverage
to be in place, is terminated for any reason prior to the completion of all obligations and
requirements of the agreement, then the parties shall maintain all required coverages until the Fire
Authority provides written authorization to terminate the coverages following the Fire Authority’s
review and determination that all liability posed under the agreement as to the parties providing
insurance has been eliminated.

All parties must agree and acknowledge that if they fail to obtain all of the required insurance, or
to obtain and ensure that the coverage required is maintained by any contractor or other third
parties involved in any way with the performance of the agreement, then the parties shall be
responsible for any losses, claims, suits, damages, defense obligations, or liability of any kind or
nature incurred by the Fire Authority or its officers, employees, servants, volunteers,
subcontractors and agents doing work on the behalf of the Fire Authority.

B. Worker’s Compensation Insurance

All parties subject to Worker’s Compensation laws (generally, any party with ‘one or more
employees) shall procure and maintain at their own expense. during the term of the agreement,
Workers’ Compensation insurance providing coverage as required by the California State
Workers” Compensation Law, and must agree that if any class of employees employed by the
parties is not protected by the California State Workers’ Compensation Law, then the parties shall
provide adequate insurance for the protection of such employees to the satisfaction of the Fire
Authority. Additionally, parties must agree to waive their statutory immunity under any Workers’
Compensation or similar statute, as respecting the Fire Authority, and to require any and all
contractors, third parties, and any other person or entity involved in the performance of the
agreement to do the sapie. Any party that is not subject to California Workers’ Compensation law
must agree to execute a certificate attesting to such to the satisfaction of the Fire Authority.

C.  Professional Liability Insurance

All parties performing design professional or professional services shall procure the above-
mentioned policies in addition to a professional liability policy. Such parties shall procure and
maintain at their own expense, during the term of the agreement, professional errors and omissions
liability insurance for protection against claims alleging negligent acts, errors or omissions which
may arise from the parties’ performance of the agreement, whether by the parties themselves or by
their employees, subcontractors, or sub consultants, to the extent such person other than the parties
are permitted to perform the agreement. Parties must agree that the amount of this insurance
provided by such policy shall not be less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim.

D. Endorsements

All parties must agree that, notwithstanding any inconsistent statement in any required insurance
policies or any subsequent endorsements attached thereto, the protection offered by all policies,
except for workers’ compensation, professional liability or errors or omissions, shall bear an
endorsement whereby it is provided that the Fire Authority and its officers, employees, servants,
volunteers, subcontractors, attorney and agents doing work on behalf of the Fire Authority,



including without limitation, the Fire Chief, are named as additional insureds, and that all
additional insureds shall be entitled to the full benefit of all insurance policies in the same manner
and to the same extent as any other insureds without limitation to the benefits conferred upon
them other than policy limits as to coverages.

All parties must agree to require that the carriers of all required insurance policies waive their
rights of subrogation against the Fire Authority and its officers, volunteers, employees, attorney,
contractors and subcontractors.

All parties must agree to require that each policy be endorsed to provide that the policy shall not
be cancelled or reduced in coverage (except by paid claims) unless the insurer has provided the
Fire Authority with thirty (30) day prior written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.

All parties must agree to require that each policy be endorsed.to provide that the policy shall apply
on a primary and noncontributing basis in relation to any insurance or self-insurance, primary or
excess, maintained or available to the Fire Authonty, and its officers, employees, servants,
volunteers, subcontractors and agents doing work on behalf of the Fire Authority.

All parties must agree to require that each policy bare arr @ﬁd@fsement stating that any failure to
comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not atfeet coverage provided to the Fire
Authority, its elected or appointed of officers, officials, employees. agents or volunteers.



VIII. REQUESTS
FOR
PROPOSALS/QUALIFICATIONS

A, Introduction

A Request for Proposal (“RFP”) or a Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) are forms of solicitation
for proposals from potential service providers of professional, unique; or technical services. An
RFP or RFQ should be used to solicit contracts when spemﬁcatlons and price are not the
predominant award criteria. S

An RFP or RFQ should be used to contract for professional serv1ces m advice in financial,
economic, accounting, legal, engineering, architectural, environmental, land:s surveymg, technical,
or administrative matters, and for the acquisition of unique or equipment in circumstances where:

The evaluation of the services sought 1s based on technical or professional ability;
The evaluation of the services sought is based on artistic and/or aesthetic value;
Price or cost is a secondary consideration in selecting the service or product; or
The advantages of a particular vendor outweigh any price differences.

LN

B.  Form of RFP/RFQ A ™

An RFP or RFQ should contain as much detait as: poss1ble regardmg the scope of services or the
product sought. The content ot an RFP or RFQ Wlll vary for each product but should include:

A precise description of the problem or obje«.,tne

The services to be performed.;

The preduct to be provided,

The anticipated schedule, including dates and times, for the: submittal of proposals; any
‘pre-proposal conferences; awarding the contract; commencement of work on the project;
~and the completion of the project;

5. Expec,tatlons or limitations set by the Fire Authority such as the format, form, and
quantity of any expect@d reports and the extent of any assistance that will be provided by
the Fire' Authority;

6. Expectations of the eontent of proposals including:

An overall description of techniques to be used;

A listing of similar services provided to other clients;

Contact information for a reference;

Time estimates;

Staffing estimates;

Facilities and equipment to be used;

The portions of the contract to be performed by subcontractors;

Subcontractor qualifications;

Total cost and desired method of payment;

b NS

P EE e e o



j. Contract term requirements such as prohibitions against assignment;
indemnification; insurance requirements; bond requirements; and warranties;
compliance with federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations; compliance
with any grant related regulations, and a sample contract; and

k. The factors that will be considered in determining whether to award the contract.

C. RFP/RFQ Procedures
1. Preparation of RFP/RFO

The personnel desiring to obtain goods or services requiring ati "RFP/RFQ shall prepare the
RFP/RFQ. All RFPs/RFQs will then be submitted to the Fire Chief. The Fire Chief can approve
any RFPs/RFQs valued up to $50,000.00 and will submit RFPS/RFQS valued at greater than
$50,000.00 for approval by the Fire Authority Board.

2. Submission of RFP/RFQ

Upon approval of the RFP/RFQ, the RFP/RFQ will be sent to at least three (3) potentlal
candidates or, if necessary, posted publicly.

3. Submission of Proposals

e
Y
a

Proposals shall be submitted by 5:00 p.m. on the designated closing day. No information can be
distributed to respondents until all responses have been reviewed and the contract is awarded.
Respondents may modify or: w1thdraw their proposals prior to 5:00 p.m. on the closing day.
Modifications submitted after this time will be rejected and returned to the respondent.

Fire Authority staff may eenduct conferences to explain the requirements of the project. A
sufficient amount of time should be allowed after thie RFP/RFQ has been issued to allow potential
respondents to become: famihiar with the project. Any clarification or changes required to the
RFP/RFQ as a result of the conference shall be added as a written amendment. A summary of the
conference shall be provided to all pr@speetlve respondents receiving the request.

Any amendments to RFPs/RFQs shall be made in writing and submitted to all known candidates.
If necessary, the closing date can be extended to accommodate such amendments.

4. Review of Proposals

Proposals shall be received by the Fire Chief’s administrative assistant. Proposals shall be time-
stamped and retained in a secure location until the established closing date and time. The Fire
Chief will review proposals and determine the award. For contracts valued at over $50,000.00 the
Fire Chief will submit the Fire Chief’s top three choices to the Fire Authority Board along with
the Fire Chief’s recommendation. The Fire Authority Board shall then award the contract. All
contracts for professional services shall be approved by the Fire Authority General Counsel.



The Fire Chief shall evaluate each proposal based on the factors stated in the RFP/RFQ. Factors
not specified in the RFP/RFQ will not be considered.

The contents of the proposal shall remain confidential until the contract is awarded or all proposals
are rejected. The proposals shall then be maintained as public records.

IX. Formal Bidding Procedures

These Formal Bidding procedures shall be utilized whenever a potential contract requires formal
bidding, including Major Purchases and those contracts that constitute “Public Works.”

A. Submission of Requirements to Board

The Fire Chief shall submit proposed specifications fot a contract requiring formal bidding to the
Fire Authority Board. The Board will vote to autharizg the solicitation of bids.

B. Solicitation of Bids

Upon approval from the Fire Authority Board, the Fire Chief’s administrative assistant shall
prepare the notice to invite bids. The notice shall be published at least twice, not less than five
days apart, in a newspaper of general circulation. printed and published in the Fire Authority’s
jurisdiction, or if there is none, posted in at least 3 public places. The notice shall distinctly state
the project to be done. The ﬁrst notlce must be published at least 10 days before the Fire Authority
begins accepting bids. '

The notice will incLuZié‘ iSitI'UCtiOﬁS. on submitting bids to the Fire Chief’s administrative assistant,
an overview of the work to be performed, estimated costs, any special conditions or requirements
for the work, and the types of licenses required for the work.

C. Submission and Review of Bids .

Bids will be submitted to the Fire Chief’s administrative assistant. Bid proposals must be signed
by an authorized agent of the bidder and must identify all subcontractors that will perform work

on the project.

The Fire Chief will present the lowest bids to the Fire Authority Board. The Fire Authority Board
may reject any and all bids presented and readvertise. The Fire Authority Board shall select the
lowest bidder unless deciding on an RFP/RFQ which requires consideration of other factors.

Once the Fire Authority selects and approves a bid, the Fire Chief’s administrative assistant will
notify the winning bidder.

D. Bidder’s Security Deposit

For “Public Projects” and any other project the Fire Authority Board decides, all bidders must
submit a security deposit that is at least 10 percent of the total bid.



E. Execution of Contract

After notifying the winning bidder, the Fire Chief’s administrative assistant will arrange to have a
contract prepared and executed by the Fire Chief and the winning bidder. The proposed contract
will be reviewed by the Fire Authority attorney. The winning bidder will post a surety bond for
the full value of the contract.

X. Contract Management

The Fire Authority will administer all contracts, control payments prox. 1de contract extensions,
maintain a procurement file, and approve any changes in products or services. The quality and
quantity of goods shall be inspected before any payments are made. Contraet management shall
be the responsibility of the personnel placed in charge of the contract, but can be. dss,lmed by the

Fire Chief, o

A file shall be maintained for each contract. Whenever goods are received by the Fire Authority
pursuant to a contract, the receiving personnel shall keep a written record in the contract file of
such receipt. Contract files shall be maintained by the Fire Chief’s administrative assistant.

T o



